

CONFIDENTIAL

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

Reinforcement measures of training for the 4th Graduating Class
of the Joint War Operations Research Class of the Party-
Political-Military College of this Institute (Draft)

- I. The instruction to enforce this curriculum is based on a general outline which was resolved by this Revolutionary Institute.
- II. The time required to complete the research seminary: The 4th Graduating Class will be in session for three months.
- III. The courses of study:
 - A. Report on current affairs
 1. Report on Party affairs
 2. Report on political affairs
 3. Report on military affairs
 - B. Lectures on special topics:
 1. History and theories of the KMT
 2. The social policy of KMT
 3. War philosophy and military science
 4. Seminar on total warfare
 5. Seminar on the mobilization of the army.
 6. Strategy of joint air, land and naval warfare
 7. Seminar on the USSR and its satellites in East Europe
 8. The present situation of USSR in regard to its Asiatic policy
 9. The Soviet military machine
 10. Our (China) place in world affairs (or - influence on)
 11. Psychological warfare
 12. Intelligence operations in practice

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

13. Principals of scientific management

14. Seminar on the joint war effort of the KMT, the government, and the military.

C. Discussion of special topics:

1. In relation to party affairs

- (a) Utilization and improvement of the basic party unit
- (b) Effective realization of the rule "the party leads the government"
- (c) The establishment and utilization of the party within the enemy camp.
- (d) Ways to work party activity into society.

The following special topics shall be included in the report section:

- (a) The order of battle for the party
- (b) The strategy and tactics of the party
- (c) The working methods of the Party's psychological warfare program

2. In relation to political affairs

- (a) Seminar on the improvement of the present administrative forces of the government
- (b) Personnel policy and rules to be in effect for the period of the mainland counter-attack
- (c) Seminar on (problems of) the organization of government affairs in the war zone
- (d) Regaining control of local political administrative power

3. In relation to economic affairs

- (a) Seminar on current financial and economic problems

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- (b) The program of economic preparation for war
- (c) Taking over and reorganizing Communist financial and economic organs
- (d) The financial and economic policy in areas recovered from the Communists

4. In relation to social affairs

- (a) A summary of the preliminary social security program for Taiwan
- (b) The program of reorganizing the social orders
- (c) The administration and control of people's organizations after the Communist territory is regained
- (d) The working and relief projects in the recovered areas

The following social topics shall be included in the report section:

- (a) The social policy during the mainland counter-attack
- (b) The "peasants' movement" during the mainland counter-attack
- (c) The "youth movement" during the mainland counter-attack
- (d) The "labor movement" during the mainland counter-attack
- (e) The "women's movement" during the mainland counter-attack
- (f) Program for the (post-offensive) relief and rehabilitation in the liberated areas

5. Concerning cultural and educational affairs

- (a) Education policy
- (b) The educational system

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- (c) The "San Min Chu I" cultural policy and the program for its practical application
- (d) The preliminary program for the cultural and educational system in the recovered areas.

The following special topics shall be listed in the reference section:

- (a) The program of national spiritual education
 - (b) The program of productive laborers' education
 - (c) The program of combined civilian and military education
 - (d) The expanded plan for movie education
6. In relation to military affairs
- (a) Critical points of strategy in counter-offensive warfare.
 - (b) General mobilization and its practical management.
 - (c) Summary of the effective management of security and government administration in the recovered areas.
 - (d) Seminar on the political organization in the war area (discussion of the problems will be combined with the political section)

The following special topics shall be included in report sections:

- (a) The organization of the political machine in the war area and methods of managing it effectively.
 - (b) The control and disposition of prisoners of war
7. Concerning foreign affairs:
- (a) International propagation of the government policy for the thorough implementation of the "Counter Communism, Oppose Russia" theme.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- (b) The problems of an Asiatic collective security system
- (c) Seminar on the question of overseas Chinese and their foreign intercourses.
- (d) The ways and means to improve our relationship with nations of importance.
- (e) The ways and means to strengthen the international exchange of information.

3. Review: The topics for joint war operations shall be regulated according to progress of the course of studies.

IV. The procedure of instructions:

- A. The current affairs reports: To give a particular emphasis on the general situation of party, political and military development. Report on the party affairs shall be entrusted to those center figures who are with the party. In relation to political and military reports, government officials and military personnel will be invited to report on these problems. It is necessary that its institute should request those reporters to supply a written outline which will be for general discussion.
- B. Lectures on special topics: Specialists will be invited to lecture and a written general outline of the topics will be printed for the seminary.
- C. Discussion of the special topics: The discussion will be based on the general outline for discussion as is prescribed by this institute. The general conclusion which is reached in this section will be served as a principle guidance for the next seminary.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

I. Organization of Branches:

1. There will be such branches as party affairs, political affairs, economic affairs, social affairs, cultural and educational affairs, military affairs, and foreign affairs for research students of the current session. Each student will take part in one of the 7 teams and will engage in the study of a related subject.
2. One in each team will be elected summoner who will guide the progress of the research activities and will hold discussions with various teams on matters having bearing on their study.

II. The Taking of A Subject:

1. Research students will, in principle, in their respective teams, (excluding reports or matters for references purposes) take up one special subject. They will then make all preparations for the subjects taken up by them.
2. Of the students having taken up the same subject, one will be made to take charge of the progress of the subject under study and the re-adjustment of its materials.
3. Researchers having taken up the same subject will exchange opinions and materials among themselves so as to facilitate the progress of the research activities.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

4. Aside from joint research one may make an individual or deeper study of a special subject or a branch of the special subject.

III. Reference Materials:

1. Reference materials and Communist materials required in the study of a special subject will be printed and provided by this Institute. In addition, students may ask for loan of such materials at the Institute's library and the Institute's Communist materials section. If found necessary, application may be made to related organizations for the provision of such materials.
2. The viewing of reference materials will be made during the given period.
3. Notes will be taken during the viewing of reference ~~of~~ materials. This will assist the progress of discussions.

IV. Individual Task:

1. Each student will conduct a devoted study of the subject he has taken up and will make a written statement.
2. The written statement must be as deep, as clear, and as systematic as possible. The written statement will be made during the research hours following the completion of a discussion. The statement will

CONFIDENTIAL

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

be handed to one in charge of re-adjusting the materials which will serve as data of common research.

3. One assigned to re-adjust materials is exempt from making his own report.

V. Discussion In Teams:

1. Various teams will make their own decision in the apportionment of number of times in the study of a special subject following which the decision will be notified to the team of institute affairs.

2. Subjects listed as reports will be reported verbally by the Guidance Committee. Members desiring to express their own opinions may submit same to the material readjuster. Such material will be attached to the original text and there will be no further discussion. Subject listed as reference materials will be treated as such and no special report will be made on the subject.

3. Subjects already previously studied but will continue discussion in the present term will do so following the outline of discussion. After discussions by various teams have been completed, the material readjuster will together with students studying the subject sum up the opinions expressed and will make a conclusion which will be submitted to the institute affairs team for printing and will

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

CONFIDENTIAL

then be discussed collectively.

4. New subjects to be studied in the present session will be discussed by members assigned to the subject. They will come to a preliminary conclusion as based on ~~materials~~ opinions expressed. The conclusions will be submitted to the institute affairs team for printing. The subject will again be discussed and will once again be submitted to the institute affairs team for printing following which it will be brought up for collective discussion.
5. Time for the discussion of each special subject is to be pre-arranged. Chairman and those assigned to the subject will reach a decision beforehand which will be announced antecedent to its discussion.
6. When conducting a discussion, students assigned to the subject will elect a chairman and a secretary among themselves. At the inception, chairman will make a report of the gists of the subject so as to facilitate the conduct of discussions.
7. At the start of a discussion, the Guidance Committee will if considered necessary make an explanation of the gists of the subject and the progress of its study in previous sessions.
8. During the discussion of a subject, various teams may if necessary invite specialists outside the institute or responsible officials of related

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

matters to participate and to make reports on the actual situation.

9. Speech will be limited to 3 minutes. A request from the chairman for extension may be made if necessary.
10. All speeches must be directed at the outline of each discussion, must be concrete, ~~and~~ must not be far-reaching, must not be a repetition of what has already been expressed by others or else, the chairman may call a halt to the speech.
11. During a discussion, a debate on the pros and cons of the subject will be conducted so as to reach a consensus of opinion. Unsettled arguments will be solved by vote.
12. Following a speech, the deliverer will jot down the gists of his speech in a slip which is to be handed to the secretary (the slip is considered *a part of* the work of one's study).
13. The above slip together with the secretary's record will be handed to the readjuster by the chairman as the data of common research.
14. At the conclusion of each discussion, chairman will sum up speeches made by making a conclusion. Requests for the inclusion of minority opinions will be accepted.
15. A certain portion of time will be reserved prior

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

to the conclusion of a discussion for the comment of the participating instructor.

16. Discussions will be recorded in an orderly manner. Conclusions will be ~~not~~ recorded separately for re-adjustment. Opinions expressed by various individuals will be collected at the same time/, and will be readjusted for reference purposes.

VI. Common Work:

1. Following the conclusion of team discussions, researchers will make a draft conclusion as based on the record of discussions made, the slip of speech made, personal report. The draft will be handed to the readjuster.
2. When making a draft conclusion one must from time to time discuss with the designated member of the Guidance Committee.
3. Following the completion of the primary conclusion, one will still have to make a report on the gists of the subject, the point of argument and unsettled problems.
4. The primary conclusion and report must be completed during the given hours and must be submitted to the institute affairs team for printing. Printed copies will be distributed among students for collective discussion.

VII. Combined Organization:

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

-6-

CONFIDENTIAL

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

1. Prior to collective discussion, the institute affairs team will have the party affairs, political affairs, economic affairs, social affairs, cultural and educational affairs, military affairs and foreign affairs teams divided into 5 sections. The above teams will then be formed into 5 mixed teams. They will be numbered from 1 to 5.
2. In organizing mixed teams, the original^{foremost}/five summoners will continue to direct the progress of the research of the 5 teams.

VIII. Collective Discussion:

1. The 5 mixed teams will hold collective discussions simultaneously. These discussions will number 29 times. They cover special subjects of the party affairs, political affairs, economic affairs, social affairs, cultural and educational affairs, military affairs, foreign affairs, 7 teams. Each subject will be discussed once. The arrangement of time for the discussion of various subject will be decided by various teams themselves.
2. Prior to a discussion, members must have a thorough study of conclusions reached by various teams and related reference materials. When formal discussion is held, the text of the subject in question will not be read to the public.

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

CONFIDENTIAL

3. During a discussion, one assigned to the research and of the subject will work as chairman ~~of~~ secretary and will make a brief explanation as based on the prepared report so as to facilitate discussion.
4. The speech of each member will be limited to 3 minutes. It, however, may be extended or reduced by the~~x~~ chairman in consideration of the actual need.
5. Following a speech, the deliverer is required to hand the speech delivery ~~speech~~^{slip} to the secretary (the slip represents a part of the work of the deliverer).
6. At the conclusion of each discussion, Chairman must make a conclusion and must obtain the approval of the team members.
7. Prior to the conclusion of a discussion, time will be reserved for the comment of the participating instructor.
8. All conclusions of discussions must be recorded for re-adjustment. Speech delivery ~~speech~~ slips will also be collected and will be used as reference materials in individual team material re-adjustment.

IX. Individual Team Readjustment:

1. Following collective discussions, members will return to their own teams.
2. Following the submittance to the readjuster of the

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

record of collective discussions, speech delivery slips by various teams, the readjuster will summon those assigned to the same subject to make a re-adjustment of the new opinions expressed by participants at the collective discussion, contradictory opinions and arguments following which a further discussion will be made. This brings the revision of the original conclusion.

3. The final revised conclusion and the complete record will be submitted to the institute affairs team.

X. Correction and Examination:

1. Following the completion of re-adjustment by various teams, various teams will pick 2 among the team members to make a revision of the writings of the conclusions reached. The revision will be taken charge of by the examining office.
2. The revised conclusion will be examined primarily by the institute's examining office together with various teams and team committee members and will be brought up for examination by the Education Committee.

- (4) During the individual team discussion, collective discussion and readjustment of materials by individual teams, team committee members, education committee members and guidance committee members and other related officials will participate

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

and give their instructions.

- (5) Research forums will be held in a collective manner. They will be conducted in pace with the progress of the subject under study. Each session will hold 3 forums from which will be held in charge by one elected/among the summoners of various teams. The forum will discuss matters of common interests pertaining to the subject under study, and will examine the actual situation and progress of the research work of various teams. They will be participated by Chairman of the Education Committee and Team Affairs Committee members who will give their comments.
- (6) Life Forum will be held once a month. One from among the research members will be elected in charge of the forum which will discuss matters pertaining to a disciplined life.
- (7) Communist matters forum will be held 4 times each session. One from among the research members will be elected in charge of the forum which will make reports on the Communist situation and will study such situation.
- (8) Current event forum will be held twice in each session. One from among the research members will be elected in charge of the ~~session~~ forum at which opinions on current events will be exchanged.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- (9) For the entire period meetings will be held on seven occasions by members of the Institute to make reports on individual working experiences and opinions of the work.
- (10) The reports on current affairs, lectures on special topics and discussions on special topics should be centered at the outline of the party-political-military joint war operations. Before the discussions on special topics start, members of the Institute must have a good study of the outline of the joint war operations.
- (11) Rehearsals - The military section will take charge of the rehearsals in accordance with the regulations stipulated in the outline of the training program.
- (12) Time: The reports on current affairs and the lectures on special topics will take about three weeks, the discussions on special topics will take about nine weeks and the rehearsals will take about one week. (For details, refer to the table of curriculum). When and if necessary the time can be shortened or lengthened.

V. Study of President's speeches

- (1) In addition to listening to the speeches of the President, members of the Institute will study it four or five times a week with an average of one hour each time in the form of collective study and individual section study.
- (2) The order of the individual section study on the President's speeches must be coordinated with the ~~the~~ research courses of various sections.

4

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

- VI. During the research period the members of the Institute should write the following things: autobiography, report on opinions regarding the study of the President's speeches, individual written exercises, practice exercises and graduation reports.
- VII. Separate regulations will be made concerning the life and ^{way of} the methods of guidance to the curriculum and homework of the members of the Institute.
- VIII. These regulations will be put into force after the passage by the Institute Affairs Committee. Any amendment made should get the passage by the Institute Affairs Committee before it is put into practice.

Table of curriculum for the 4th Graduating Class of the Party-
Political-Military Cadres Joint War Operations Research Class
of the Revolutionary Practice Research Institute

1. Presidents' speeches of weekly memorial service to Dr. SUN --
13 times
2. Study of the President's speeches -- in the form of study and
will be conducted 49 times. (Not in classes)
3. Reports on current affairs
 - (1) Reports on party affairs - will be conducted one time by
X CHANG Li-sheng (1728/0632/3932) with emphasis put on the
review of the general situation of the party affairs.
 - (2) Reports on politics -- will be conducted one time in the

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

form of report by ~~YU~~ Hung-chün (0205/7703/6874) with emphasis put upon the review of the general situation of political ~~situation~~ affairs.

- (3) Reports on military - will be conducted one time in the form of report by ~~R~~'ENG Meng-chi (1756/1322/4874) with emphasis put upon the general situation of military affairs.

4. Lectures on special topics

(1) KMT history and theory - will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by ~~CHANG~~ Ch'i-yün (1728/0366/2498).

(2) KMT social policy - will be conducted ~~two times~~ ^{one time} in the form of lecture by ~~KU~~ Cheng-lang (6253/2973/4854).

(3) War philosophy and military science - will be conducted two times in the form of lecture by ~~PAI~~ Hung-liang (4101/7703/0081).

(4) A study of total war - will be conducted three times ~~in~~ in the form of lecture by ~~FAN~~ Chien (5400/0256).

(5) Study of military mobilization - will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by ~~HSU~~ Cheng-ch'ang (1776/2973/2490).

(6) A summary of army-navy-air operations - will be conducted three times in the form of lecture.

(7) A study of Soviet Russia and her satellites in East Europe - will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by ~~CHIANG~~ Ching-kuo (5592/4842/0948).

(8) Present situation of Russia ^{in regard to her Asiatic policy} ~~and her policy in Asia~~ -

will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

F FU Tao-ming (0592/6670/2494).

- (9) Soviet military -- will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by *F* CHENG Chieh-min (6774/0094/3046).
- (10) Present world situation and our foreign policy -- will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by YEH Kung-ch'ao (5509/0361/6389).
- (11) *P* Psychological warfare -- will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by *F* CH'EN Hsueh-p'ing (7115/7185/1456).
- (12) Technique of use of secret information -- will be conducted one time in the form of lecture.
- (13) Methods of scientific administration -- will be conducted one time in the form of lecture by *F* WANG Yin-wu (3769/7189/0063).
- (14) A study of the outline of the Party-Political-Military Joint War Operations -- will be conducted two times in the form of lecture by *F* T'AO Hsi-sheng (7118/1585/5110). *also pg 5*

5. Discussions on special topics

- (1) Party affairs section -- in the charge of CHANG Li-sheng
 - a. Use and improvement of the basic organization of the Party
 - b. The effective measures to carry out the system of 'Party-leads-the-government'
 - c. The establishment and use of the Party organization behind the enemy's lines
 - d. How to socialize party activities and party work

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

The following special topics will be included in the report section:

- a. The order of battle of the party
 - b. The strategy and tactics of the party
 - c. The psychological warfare of the party
- (2) The political affairs section - in the charge of T'AO Hsi-sheng (7118/1585/5110)
- a. A study of the improvement of the administration of the existing organizations
 - b. Policy and system of personnel in the period of a main-land-recapture offensive
 - c. A study of government affairs organizations in war area
 - d. Program of re-establishment of local government

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

5

DISCUSSION ON SPECIAL SUBJECTS

I. Economic Section:

- 1. Study on current economic and financial problems.
- 2. The economical mobilization measures.
- 3. Adjustment and take-over of the Communist financial and economical organizations.
- 4. Financial and economic policy for the recovered areas.

LI Shou-yung
(2621 1108 7167)

Studying and Reading (24)
of the Data

II. Social Section:

- 1. Outline of the preliminary plan for the security of the society in Taiwan.
- 2. Measures for the improvement of social influence.
- 3. Methods for the handling of the people's organizations in the recovered areas.
- 4. Plan for the relief of the people through labor in the recovered areas.

Discussions to be (18)
conducted by individual
teams

Joint home work (4)

The following are classified as special items for making report on each subject.

- 1. Social policy during the period of recovering the mainland.
- 2. Farmers' movement during the period of recovering the mainland.

Discussion to be
conducted by the
entire group

(29) KU Cheng-kang
(6253 2973 4854)

Adjustment by in-
dividual teams

(5)
also see it

(80)

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- 2 -

CONFIDENTIAL

3. Youth movement during the period of recovering the mainland.
4. Labor movement during the period of recovering the mainland.
5. Women's movement during the period of recovering the mainland.
6. Revival and relief measures in the recovered areas.

III. Cultural and Educational Section:

1. Educational policy.
 2. Educational system.
 3. Cultural Policy of the 'Three People's Principles and its enforcement measures.
 4. Plan for the practice of culture and education during the preliminary stage in the recovered areas.
- The following special subjects are for reference purpose.
1. Measures for the education of national spirit.
 2. Measures for the education of productive labor.
 3. Measures for a joint education of military and civil personnel.

NI
NI Wen-ya
(0242 2429 0068)

CONFIDENTIAL

- 3 -

CONFIDENTIAL

4. Plan for the promotion of the education of motion picture and culture.

IV. Military Section:

1. Principle of tactics of military operation for recovering the mainland.
2. Military mobilization and its enforcement measures.
3. Outline of the execution of the administrative work and public peace and order in the recovered areas.
4. War of intelligence against the Communists.
5. Study on the administrative organizations in the war areas (To be discussed in conjunction with the political section).

A
HOU T'eng
(0186 7505)

The following are classified as special items for making report on each subject.

1. Organization of political work and its enforcement measures.
2. Measures for the handling, control, and training of Communist prisoners of war.

V. Foreign Affairs Section:

1. Diplomatic measures to be adopted for a thorough practice of the anti-Communist and resist-Russia policy.

CONFIDENTIAL

- 4 -

CONFIDENTIAL

2. The question of a collective security organization in Asia.
3. Study on the current overseas Chinese question and foreign relations.
4. How to improve the foreign relationship between our country and other important nations.
5. The question of the improvement of international propaganda.

~~YEH Kung-ch'ao~~
(5509 0361 6389)

also level 4

EXERCISE:

- | | | |
|--|------|------|
| I. Discussion on combined operations among party, political, and military units. | (2) | |
| II. Exercise of a joint operations among party, political, and military units. | (13) | (16) |
| III. Ball firing exercise. | (1) | |
| Discussion meeting on Communist activities. | (4) | (4) |
| Discussion meeting on current events .* | (2) | (1) |
| Discussion meeting on the study of work. ** | (3) | |
| Discussion meeting on the daily life. *** | (3) | |

* One of these is to be conducted together with the party activity program and does not occupy the regular class hour.

** Does not occupy the regular class hour.

*** Does not occupy the regular class hour.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

| | | |
|--|-----|-------|
| Report on work experience. * | (7) | |
| Report on the completion of writing and composing. | (2) | (2) |
| Report on knowledge gained from writing, composing and speeches. | (2) | (2) |
| * Does not occupy the regular class hour. | | |
| Total | | (141) |

Remarks:

1. The entire period is 13 weeks. With the exception of holidays, the total official class time is 70 and a half days. Every forenoon and afternoon in the day is counted as two times, and thus making a total of 141 times. The distribution of various subjects is given in the table.
2. There is a total of 63 times in the evening during the entire period and each time consists of two hours. The 63 times include 6 times for party activities, 3 times for conducting discussion meeting for the study of work, 3 times for conducting discussion meeting on the subject of daily life, 12 times for evening meetings, 1 time for filling up the mutual-acquaintance blank, and 38 times for study purpose (including studying and reading of date and writing and composing). All these items are not listed in the table.

CONFIDENTIAL

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

- 6 - **CONFIDENTIAL**

3. During the 13-week period, with the exception of the 13th week which is used for conducting exercise, 49 times will be used for studying and reading the speeches given by the president. Each of the times consists of 50 minutes.
4. Activities to be conducted during the two days before the opening of the official class days are not listed in the table. They could be found in the table showing the daily activities before the start of the class.

CONFIDENTIAL

Approved For Release 2000/06/26 : CIA-RDP83-00418R000100130017-4

CONFIDENTIAL

-1-

4454-E Tony

Methods of Studying Speeches by President *CHIANG Kai-shek of the
"Revolution Practising Research Institute (7245/0730/1395/6432/^{4496/}4282/7108)"
for Members of the 4th Graduating Class, "Class of Joint War Operations
Study (5114/^{10155/}0678/2069/4282/4496/3803) " for ^{Party,} Administrative, and Military
Officers

(TN : The term in asterisk is out of the translator's guesswork, since
the full title does not appear in the portion of Chinese original on hand.)

I. These methods have been worked out in accordance with the
" Practice of Training for this Period (2609/2601/2403/5148/1395/2457/
of
6596/3127) " in clauses 5 and 6 pertaining to the study and opinion
in compositions and writing on speeches made by President *CHIANG Kai-shek
of this Institute.

II. Members of this Institute for this period shall study 4 or 5 times
each week speeches made by President *CHIANG Kai-shek of this Institute
with one hour for each of these 4 or 5 times.

III. The study of these speeches shall be divided into Collective Study
and Individual Study. Individual study in Sections (4809) which comprise
"Sections in homework and courses (2814/^{4882/}4430/4809) " and " Composite
Sections (3236/0678/4882/4809) " with the following particulars :

(1) For Collective Study

Speeches to be studied shall be coordinated with "Reports on
General Situation (1395/0523/1032/0707) " and " Case Study (1415/7344/
6199/6615) " in lectures.

CONFIDENTIAL

(2) For Individual Study in Sections

Speeches to be studied shall be coordinated with " Case Study " in various Sections in discussion.

IV. Collective Study

At specific time, a collective study shall be conducted at the Auditorium. This study shall be read out by a member of the institute aloud from line to line, whereas other members of the institute put down their punctuation marks while following this member's reading.

V. Individual Study in Sections

At specific time, at each section's research room, members of the institute read materials on their own.

VI. Members of the institute shall make twice a Report on opinion in compositions and writing on speeches. Subject matters and time for compositions shall be proclaimed at the appropriate time by the Division of Studies (2403/0523/4809) (TN : of this institute).

4th
Speeches to be studied by Members of the Graduating Class, Class of Joint War Operations Study for Party, Administrative and Military Officers

I. Collective Study (1st week to 3rd week)

- (1) The System of San-min-chu-i and Order of Practice ^{its}
- (2) Fundamentals of Revolutionary Education (TN : National

Revolution against Communist Revolution and the old order in politics)

"ACT" (5887)

CONFIDENTIAL

-3-

- (4) Revolution Practising Movement
- (5) Practice (1395/6432) and Organization
- (6) Establishment of*Party Organization and Utilization of it
- (7) Reestablishment of Fundamental Organization of Revolution and Furtherance of Revolution Movement against Chinese Communists on Mainland : Policy of the Party for Mass Movement
- (8) Tasks as obligation to senior party officials
- (9) Principles of Science
- (10) Unification of Opinions on Planning and Firm Establishment of Fundamentals and Weighty Points of Planning
- (11) Instructions on the Total Mobilization Movement to Oppose Chinese Communists and Resist Soviets
- (12) The Prevailing International Situation and Circumstances of China's Revolution

Translator's note : If we are not convinced that the Chinese Nationalists champion " Revolution " as much as the Chinese Communists, we may feel at a loss with the Radical ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~ Socialist Party of France which is neither Radical nor Socialist in its platform.

By Party Organization, we understand, according to previous documents which contained this same term, that this indicates Nationalist Underground Activities in Communist China.

CONFIDENTIAL

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

-4-

II. Individual Study in Sections (4th week to 6th week)

(1) Party Affairs Section

- A. An account of (TN : National) Revolution by Kuomintang and the Cause and Effect of Successes and Failures
- B. A Letter to all Kuomintang Comrades on Reform of Kuomintang
- C. Policy of the Efforts of Kuomintang from now on
- D. How to Redress our Methods in Revolution
- E. Principles of Directing Kuomintang Actions
- F. Importance of Organization and its Relations with Intelligence
- G. Meaning of Observance of Regulations for party members
- H. Importance of Spiritual Cultivation and Psychological Reform
- I. Essence of Propriety (4409), Righteousness (5030), Integrity (1670) and Sense of Shame (5103)
- J. Psychological Warfare Strategem (1800/3127) in Revolution : Sincerity (6134)
- K. Importance and Methods and Mystery in Psychological Warfare in War Operations against the Chinese Communists
- L. Rekindle ~~XXXXXXXXXX~~ Spiritual Fire of the Party, Develop Morality of the Party and Consolidate Foundation of the Party
- M. Essentials in Reforming Local Party Affairs
- N. Principals of Party Affairs Overseas

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

CONFIDENTIAL

-5-

(2) Political Affairs Section

- A. Principals of Political Construction
- B. National Construction Movement
- C. National Constructional Administration
- D. Implementation of Hsien Administration and Political Construction
- E. Foundation of National Construction : Outline of the Triumvirate
*"Tripartite System in Administration (5887/2398/0005/5114/0455)"
- F. Duties in Implementation of local Self-Government
- G. Essentials for Modern Administrative Personnel
and Administrative
- H. Preparatory Items for Party Affairs and the Study of the
New Hsien Administration System in the Period of Recovery of
Mainland
"Government
I. Organs of Competent Authorities (0031/4619/2894/7070)"
and Principals of "Carrying out Administrative Decrees (2236/
5887/2398/0109)"
- J. Importance of Personnel Systems and Methods of Examining
and Assessment of Qualified Personnel
- K. Awareness of this Era : What do we mean by " Scientific
Era of the Masses " ?

Translator's note : The Triumvirate System in Administration has been advocated by the Chinese Nationalist authorities since many years ago, years prior to the Communist occupation of the Mainland. This system is supposed to be one which puts Kuomintang as the leading partner over the Administration and the Military

CONFIDENTIAL

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

-6-

- (3). Economic Affairs Section
 - A. Principals of Material Construction
 - B. Orientation of Chinese Nationals' Efforts henceforth and Weighty Points of National Construction
 - C. Meaning and Practice in Nationals' Economical Construction Movement
 - D. Theories in China's Economics
 - E. Meaning of Nationalization of Land and Economic
 - F. Establishment of National Financial Foundation and Determination of Implementation of Foodstuff and Land policies Finance
 - G. Tasks for the 3rd ~~XXXXXXXX~~ Conference and Necessities of Practising Land Policies
 - H. Speech (TN : made by President CHIANG) at Taiwan Provincial Finance Conference
 - I. Social Economic Construction of San-min-chu-i and Cooperative Affairs
 - J. Policies of Cooperatives henceforth ~~nswadays~~
 - K. Spirit and Essentials of "Economic Warfare against the Enemy (4842/3444/2123/2069) "
 - L. Speech (TN : made by President CHIANG) at the Inauguration of the "Supreme Economic Council (2584/7559/4842/3444/1201/0765/2585)"

~~CONFIDENTIAL~~

CONFIDENTIAL

-7-

(4) Social Affairs Section

- A. Orientation of Chinese Nationals' Efforts henceforth and Weighty Points of National Construction
- B. Social Construction ~~and~~ Principals of the Philosophy of People's Livelihood
- C. Outline of the New Life Movement (TN : which was once advocated by CHIANG Kai-shek ~~XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX~~ prior to the Sino-Japanese War which broke out in 1937.)
- D. Awareness of this ~~Era~~ : What do we mean by " Scientific ~~ERA~~ Era of the Masses"?
Implementation
- E. Step up the ~~XXXXXXXX~~ of Spirit Total Mobilization.
- F. *Supplements to the Chapter of Birth (5148) and Chapter of Happiness (2867) in People's Livelihood
- G. Physical Work and Service
- H. To the Nation's Labor and Compatriots on May Day Occasion
- I. To the Nation's Youth on 10th Youth Day
- J. Importance ~~of~~ Organization and its Relations with Intelligence
- K. To the Nation's Military Servicemen and People on New Year Occasion of 1952

Translator's : In late Dr. SUN Yat-sen's San-min-chu-i or ^Three People's Principles, there has been the People's Livelihood or Min-sheng-chu-i. Presumably, President CHIANG has added the Chapter of Birth and the Chapter of Happiness to Dr. SUN's Chapter of Clothing (5902) ~~XXXX~~, Chapter of Feeding (7380), Chapter of

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

-8-

(5) Culture and Education Section

TN:

- A. Education and its Relations with (National) Revolution and National Construction
- B. Tidying up Relics (Cultural Inheritance 2429/0553/6695/3934) Improving and ~~XXXXXX~~ Chinese National Race's Habits
- C. Improving Education and Changing Temperament
- D. National Salvation Necessitates Implementation of "Academic-Military (2429/2976/0678/0001) " and " Ethics-Technique (1795/5890/0369/0208) " Education (TN : Instances)
- E. Prototypes of Avenging Insults and Recovering of Nation and Basic Education
- F. Supplements to the Chapter of Birth and Chapter of Happiness in People's Livelihood
- G. Youths are under Acid Test by the Era and this Era is created by the Youths.
- H. The Nation Needs Revolution-inspired Youths who in turn Need Revolution-inspiring Education.
- I. Philosophy and Education in relation to the Youths
- J. Aims of Learning and Meaning of Education
- K. Education for National Salvation
- L. Education for Revolution
- M. Militant Education

(TN : Militant Education may be not much different from Paramilitary Education.)

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- (14) The principles of the Great Learning. (Ta Hsteh chih Tao /1129 1331 0037 6670/)

6. Military Section:

- (1) Military personnel should have a firm revolutionary view of life.
- (2) Important points of philosophy for the military personnel of revolution.
- (3) Explanation on the third duty of the people's revolution.
- (4) Duty and common knowledge of the police.
- (5) How to improve our revolutionary methods.
- (6) Future military education policy.
- (7) Education of the cadremen in the past, and discussion on the tactics for bandit suppression in the future.
- (8) The urgent requirement for improving the government organizations and military units and the principles of investigation and training.
- (9) Essential meaning and result of military discipline and the central subject of war philosophy.
- (10) Understanding of the revolutionary party members and military personnel.
- (11) Important purpose of "The Invariable Medium" and the basic theory of military officers.
- (12) Important points for the improvement of function establishment system of the military organizations.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- 2 -

- (13) Discussion on the fit and unfit quality between ourselves and the enemy.
- (14) Why the traitors will be destroyed and the aggressors will be defeated.
- (15) The reason for the defeat of the nation and the urgent requirement of avenging and national revival.
- (16) Important points and fundamental spirit of military reform.
- (17) Establishment of systems and promotion of good influence prior to the reconstruction of armed forces as well as the nation.
- (18) Supplementary comment and directives of the 1953 Military Conference.
- (19) The tendency of efforts and the important points of the work of anti-Communist and resist-Russians.
- (20) Study the spirit of the reconstruction of army of the United States and to point out the necessary confidence, principle, leader, nation, duty, and honor --- of the military personnel of revolution of China.
- (21) Study on the tactics of the suppression of the bandits and the necessary understanding of the highranking officials.
- (22) The importance and methods of mystery and psychological warfare toward the war of the suppression of the bandits.

(TN; Bandits means Communists.)

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- 3 -

7. Foreign Affairs Section:

- (1) The change of the current international situation and the future of our anti-Communist and resist-Russian work.
- (2) Victory of the first operation.
- (3) A statement commemorating the 5th anniversary of the United Nations.
- (4) Enemy or friend?
- (5) A letter ~~from~~ ^{to} the overseas Chinese written on the day of first Overseas Chinese Day.
- (6) Resistance against foreign invasion, and the revival of the nation.
- (7) Self-training of the diplomatic personnel.
- (8) Firm and thorough understanding of the execution of a constitutional government.
- (9) How to strive for freedom.
- (10) Why the traitors will be destroyed and the aggressors will be defeated.
- (11) The principles of the Great Learning.

III. A Combined section for reading and studying: (Speeches and addresses, 7th to 12th weeks).

1. Result and principle of organization.
2. Fundamental discussion on anti-Communists and resist-Russians.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- 4 -

3. Basic question for the reconstruction of our Party.
4. Important meaning of psychological reconstruction.
5. The truth of politics.
6. Important meaning of political reconstruction.
7. Discussion on China's Economy.
8. Important meaning of material reconstruction.
9. Supplementary discussion on the Yü (5148) and Lo (2867) chapters in the Principle of People's Livelihood.
10. Instructions for the promotion of the anti-Communist and resist-Russian mobilization movement.
11. A report made to the 1954 National Assembly.
12. Explanation of the meaning of the art of modern warfare, the principle of the ancient warfare, and the military science of Sun Tzu (1327 1311).
13. Explanation of the meaning of the ancient warfare and the military science of Sun Tzu (1327 1311).
14. The soul of revolution.
15. The soul of service men.
16. Answers to few important questions at the present time.
17. How to achieve the third task of the people's revolution.
18. Examples of scientific way of managing business.
19. Basic and important points of party and administrative functions.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- 5 -

20. Comment on the exercise of party and administrative functions. Important points and meaning of the exercise of party and administrative function.
21. Indications of the thought of the anti-Communist and resist-
Russian warfare.

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

一、業科編組：

1. 本期研究員按黨務、政治、經濟、社會、文教、軍事、外交精業科，區分為七個組，每人參加一組，從事有關專題之研究。
2. 每組推定召集人一人，照料本組研究工作之進行，並會商有關研究之各組共同事宜。

二、認定題目：

1. 各研究員就本組各專題中（除報告案或參考案外），以認定一個專題為原則，負責該專題之一切準備與有關作業事項。
2. 認定同一專題之研究員，相互推定一人為整理人，主持該專題之研討與整理工作。
3. 研究員認定專題後，應與認定同一專題之研究員，隨時交換意見，提供資料，以利研究工作之進行。
4. 研究員於一般共同研究之外得就一個專題或其中之一子題，作單獨或較深入之研究。

三、研閱資料：

1. 專題討論所需之參考資料及匪情資料，除由本院印發外，研究員得向本院圖書資料室及匪情資料室借閱，必要時得向有關機關商洽供給之。
2. 研閱資料，在排定之研習時間內行之。
3. 研閱資料應隨時寫作筆記，以為討論之助。

四、個人作業：

1. 研究員應就認定之專題，悉心研究，寫成書面作業。
2. 書面作業應力求深入，明確而有系統，並須利用研習時間，於本專題討論結束時，寫作完成，送交該專題整理人，以為共同作業之依據。
3. 擔任整理之研究員免交個人作業。

五、分組討論：

1. 各組對每一專題討論次數之分配，由各組自行商定後，送教務組編排之。
2. 凡列為報告案之專題，由輔導委員作口頭報告，研究員如有意見，得指定專人整理後，作為原案附件，不再進行討論。列為參考案者，作為討論有關專題之參考，不再專案報告。
3. 凡經前期研究之專題，本期仍繼續討論者，應依據討論綱領，於該專題分組討論後，由整理人會同本專題之研究員，綜合全組意見，作成結論，送教務組繕印，提交集體討論。
4. 凡本期新增之專題，應先就討論綱領交換意見，由認定研究本題之研究員，根據各人所提意見，草擬初步結論，交教務組繕印，再作一次討論，並經過整理後，送教務組繕印，提出集體討論。
5. 各專題每次討論時間，應預為支配，由主席約同認定該專題之研究員，於事先決定，並於討論前宣佈之。
6. 討論時，由認定各該專題之研究員，相互推定主席及紀錄各一人主持之，並於討論開始時，由主席將本案先作提要報告，俾便討論之進行。
7. 討論開始時，得視事實需要，由輔導委員說明該專題討論之要點，及以往各期研究之經過。
8. 各組討論進行時，得因實際需要，邀請院外專家或有關業務之主管同志參加，提供實務報告。
9. 每人發言每次以三分鐘為限，必要時得請准主席酌予延長之。
10. 發言內容必須針對討論綱領，扼要具體，如離題太遠，或為其他同學已發表之意見，主席得制止之。
11. 討論時應就提出之正反意見，相互辯證，以求得共同一致之意見，如仍有爭論，應提付表決。
12. 發言後，即席將發言要點記入發言條送交擔任紀錄之同學（此項發言條為本人作業之一種）
13. 上項發言條連同紀錄由各次主席交該專題整理人，以為共同作業之依據。
14. 每次討論結束時，主席須歸納發言內容，作成結論，如有少數意見，要求列入紀錄時，應一

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- 併列入。
- 15. 討論結束前，應酌留若干時間由參加指導人員講話。
- 16. 分組討論紀錄，應按討論綱領之順序，將結論分別紀錄，作為整理之依據。至各人發表之意見，應同時收附，並依討論綱領之順序，加以整理，以便參考。

六 共同作業：

- 1. 分組討論結束後，認定各專題之研究員，應依據討論之紀錄，發言條，及個人作業，草擬初步結論，由整理人主持之。
- 2. 草擬初步結論時，應隨時與指導本專題之輔導委員研商。
- 3. 初步結論完成後，再就本專題之要點，爭論之所在，以及未決定之問題，寫作報告提要。
- 4. 初步結論與報告提要，須於共同作業時間內完成，送交教務組印發全體同學，供集體討論之用。

七 混合編組：

- 1. 集體討論前，由教務組將黨務、政治、經濟、社會、文教、軍事、外交各組之研究員，各分別區分為五份，以原各組五分之一研究員混合編成五個組，以第一至第五號次編列之。
- 2. 混合編組時，由原順序在前之五組召集人，繼續照料一至五組研究工作之進行。

八 集體討論：

- 1. 集體討論採五組同時進行方式，共計廿九次，計黨務、政治、經濟、社會、文教、軍事、外交七組之專題，每題各討論一次，其時間與題目之分配，由各組自行排定。
- 2. 討論前，研究員須充分閱讀分組討論之結論，以及有關之參考資料。正式討論時，以不再宣讀本案全文為原則。
- 3. 討論時由擔任研究本題之研究員充任主席及紀錄，並根據擬就之報告提要對本案加以扼要說明，以利討論。
- 4. 發言時間，每人每次以三分鐘為限，准得由主席斟酌實際情形增減之。

- 5. 發言後，即席將發言條逕交擔任紀錄之同學。（此項發言條為本人作業之一種）
- 6. 每次討論結束時，主席須作成結論，並徵得本組研究員之同意。
- 7. 討論結束前，可酌留若干時間，由參加指導人員講話。
- 8. 討論紀錄之整理，須將所作結論，列入紀錄，並收集同學發言條，以為分組整理之參考。

九 分組整理：

- 1. 集體討論後，研究員仍回復原業科編組。
- 2. 各組將集體討論之紀錄、發言條，送交各該專題整理人後，由整理人召集認定同一專題之研究員，將集體討論時對本專題所提出之新意見，或相反意見，以及相持不決之點，加以整理後，提付研討，分別對原結論加以修正。
- 3. 將最後修正之結論，連同全部紀錄，送交教務組。

十 校正審定：

- 1. 分組整理完畢後，由各組推定研究員二人，就本組各專題之結論，作體例文字等之訂正，由本院研究所主持之。

(四) 分組討論與集體討論及分組整理討論時，由兼組務委員與教育委員，輔導委員及有關人員參加指導。

(五) 研究工作座談會採集體方式，配合研究進行之階段，全期舉行三次，由各組召集人互推一人主持，商討有關研究之各組共同性事宜，並檢查各組研究工作之實況與進度，由教育委員會主任委員及兼組務委員參加講評。

(六) 生活座談會，每一月舉行一次，由研究員互推一人主持，研討有關生活規範之促進事項。

(七) 匪情座談會，全期舉行四次，由研究員互推一人主持，對匪情提出報告並加研討。

(八) 時事座談會全期舉行二次，由研究員互推一人主持之對時事交換意見。

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- (九) 工作經驗報告，全期舉行七次，由研究員擔任之，報告個人工作經驗及心得。
- (十) 實務報告、專題講述、專題討論等之研究，均以黨政軍聯合作戰綱領為中心，專題討論開始前，各研究員應對聯合作戰綱領詳加研究。
- (十一) 演習：照教育計劃綱要之規定辦理，由軍事組主持之。
- (十二) 前項時間之支配：實務報告、專題講述、約佔三星期，專題討論約佔九星期，演習約佔一星期（詳見課程總表），必要時得酌量伸縮之。
- 伍、研讀 院長訓詞：

(一) 研究員於恭聆 院長訓話外，每週研讀 院長訓詞四次至五次，採集體與分組研讀方式，每次以一小时為準。

(二) 院長訓詞之分組研讀篇目，應與各組研究科目相互配合。

陸、研究員在院研究期間應寫作：自述、讀訓心得報告、個人書面作業、演習作業、結業報告。

柒、研究員生活與課業之輔導辦法另訂之。

捌、本辦法經院務委員會通過後施行，修改時同。

大陸黨政軍新聯合作戰研究班第四期課程總表

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

| 類別 | 科目 | 內容 | 方式 | 次數 | 指導人或主持人 | 合計 | 備改 |
|----|--------------|---|----|----|---------|----|-------|
| 院 | 總理紀念週 | | | 三 | | 三 | |
| 訓 | 詞研讀 | | 研讀 | 四 | | | 陶希聖上課 |
| 告 | 黨務報告 | 着重黨務全盤情況之檢討 | 報告 | 一 | 張厲生 | | |
| 告 | 政治報告 | 着重政治全盤情況之檢討 | 報告 | 一 | 俞鴻鈞 | 三 | |
| 告 | 軍事報告 | 着重軍事全盤情況之檢討 | 報告 | 一 | 彭孟緝 | | |
| 專 | 本黨歷史與理論 | | 講述 | 一 | 張其昀 | | |
| 專 | 本黨社會政策 | | 講述 | 一 | 谷正綱 | | |
| 專 | 戰爭哲學與軍事科學 | | 講述 | 二 | 白鴻亮 | | |
| 專 | 機體戰之研究 | | 講述 | 三 | 范健 | | |
| 專 | 軍事動員之研究 | | 講述 | 一 | 徐正昌 | | |
| 專 | 三軍作戰概要 | | 講述 | 三 | | | |
| 專 | 蘇俄及其東歐附庸國之研究 | | 講述 | 一 | 蔣經國 | 10 | |
| 專 | 蘇俄現勢及其亞洲政策 | | 講述 | 一 | 卜道明 | | |
| 專 | 蘇俄軍事 | | 講述 | 一 | 鄭介民 | | |
| 專 | 世界現勢與我國外交 | | 講述 | 一 | 葉公超 | | |
| 專 | 心理作戰 | | 講述 | 一 | 陳雪屏 | | |
| 專 | 情報運用技術 | | 講述 | 一 | | | |
| 專 | 科學管理方法 | | 講述 | 一 | 王雲五 | | |
| 專 | 黨政軍聯合作戰綱領研究 | | 講述 | 二 | 陶希聖 | | |
| 專 | 黨 | 1. 黨的基層組織之運用與改進 2. 以黨領政制度之有效實施 3. 敵後黨的組織之建立與運用 | | | | | |
| 專 | 務 | 4. 黨的活動及工作如何使之社會化 以下各專題列為報告案 | | | 張厲生 | | |
| 專 | 組 | 1. 黨的戰鬥體制 2. 黨的戰略戰術 3. 黨的心戰工作 | | | | | |
| 專 | 政 | 1. 改進現行機關管理之研究 2. 反攻時期人事政策與制度 3. 戰地政務組織之研究 4. 重建地方政權方略 | | | 陶希聖 | | |

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

| | | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|--|---|---|-----|
| 題 | 經 | 1. 當前財政經濟問題之研究 2. 經濟動員方案 3. 匪偽財經機構之接管與整理 4. 光復地區財政經濟政策 | 資 | 研 | 李壽雍 |
| | 濟 | 1. 台灣省社會安全初步計劃綱要 2. 社會風氣改造方案 3. 光復地區人民團體處理辦法 4. 光復地區三賑計劃 以下各專題列為報告案 | | | |
| 討 | 社 | 1. 反攻時期社會政策 2. 反攻時期農民運動 3. 反攻時期青年運動 4. 反攻時期勞工運動 5. 反攻時期婦女運動 6. 光復地區救濟復興方案 | 集 | 同 | 谷正綱 |
| | 會 | 1. 教育政策 2. 教育制度 3. 三民主義文化教育政策及其實施方案 4. 光復地區初期女教實施計劃 以下各專題列為考察案 | | | |
| 題 | 教 | 1. 民族精神教育方案 2. 生產勞動教育方案 3. 文武合一教育方案 4. 電化教育推行計劃 | 體 | 五 | 侯騰 |
| | 組 | 1. 反攻軍事戰爭之戰略要領 2. 軍事動員及其實施辦法 3. 光復地區治安行政工作實施綱要 4. 對匪情報戰 5. 戰地政務組織之研究(與政治組配合討論) 以下各專題列為報告案 | | | |
| 事 | 1. 戰地政工之組織與工作實施辦法 2. 匪俘處理管訓辦法 | 案 | 五 | 六 | |
| 組 | | | | | |

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

| | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------|--|--|--|--|---|---|--|-------------------------------|---|
| 論 文 組 | 1. 蘇聯及共抗俄政策之外交措施 | | | | | | | | |
| | 2. 亞洲集體安全組織問題 | | | | | | | | |
| | 3. 當前華僑問題與外交關係之研究 | | | | | | | | 葉公超 |
| | 4. 如何改善我國與重要國家間的外交關係 | | | | | | | | |
| | 5. 如何加強國際宣傳問題 | | | | | | | | |
| | 黨政軍聯合作戰座談 | | | | | | | | |
| | 黨政軍聯合作戰演習 | | | | | 三 | | | |
| | 演習 | | | | | 一 | | | |
| | 匪情座談會 | | | | | 四 | | | 四 |
| | 時事座談會 | | | | | 二 | | | 一 <small>發給此 會等竹 上課時 間</small> |
| 研究工作座談會 | | | | | 三 | | | 二 <small>作課時 間</small> | |
| 生活座談會 | | | | | 三 | | | 三 <small>作課時 間</small> | |
| 工作經驗報告 | | | | | 七 | | | 四 <small>作課時 間</small> | |
| 寫作結業報告 | | | | | 二 | | | 二 | |
| 寫作訓練心得報告 | | | | | 二 | | | 二 | |
| 總計 | | | | | | | | | 四 |
| 附註 | 一 全期十三週除假日外正式上課時間為七十天又半每日上午下午以兩次計算共為一四一次各項課程分配如本表 二 全期晚間實際時間共六三次每次二小時計黨名活動六次研究工作座談會三次生活座談會三次晚會十二次填寫相互認識表一次研習三八次(包括研閱資料及寫作)均未列入本表 三 全期十三週除第十三週舉行演習停止讀訓外研讀院長訓詞四次每次五分鐘開課前兩天之活動未列入本表另見開課前工作日程表 | | | | | | | | |

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

本院黨政軍幹部聯合作戰研究班第四期教育實施辦法(草案)
本實施辦法依據本院黨政軍幹部聯合作戰研究班教育計劃綱要訂定之。

研究時間：本班本期研究時間定為三個月。

研究科目：

(一)黨務報告：

一、黨務報告。

二、政治報告。

三、軍事報告。

(二)專題講述：

一、本黨歷史與理論。

二、本黨社會政策。

三、戰爭哲學與軍事科學。

四、總體戰之研究。

五、軍事動員之研究。

六、三軍作戰概要。

七、蘇俄及其東歐附庸國之研究。

八、蘇俄現勢及其亞洲政策。

九、蘇俄軍事。

十、世界現勢與我國外交。

十一、心理作戰。

十二、情報運用技術。

十三、科學管理方法。

CONFIDENTIAL

Penetration Institute

CONFIDENTIAL

黨政軍聯合作戰綱領研究。

(三)專題討論：

一、關於黨務者：

1. 黨的基層組織之運用與改進。

2. 以黨領政一制度之有效實施。

3. 敵後黨的組織之建立與運用。

4. 黨的活動及工作如何使之社會化。

以下各專題列為報告案。

1. 黨的戰鬪體制。

2. 黨的戰略戰術。

3. 黨的心戰工作。

二、關於政治者：

1. 改進現行機關管理之研究。

2. 反攻時期人事政策與制度。

3. 戰地政務組織之研究。

4. 重建地方政權方略。

三、關於經濟者：

1. 當前財政經濟問題之研究。

2. 經濟動員方案。

3. 匪偽財經機構之接管與整理。

4. 光復地區財政經濟政策。

四、關於社會者：

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

1. 台灣省社會安全初步計劃綱要。

2. 社會風氣改造方案。

3. 光復地區人民團體處理辦法。

4. 光復地區工賑計劃。

以下各專題列為報告案：

1. 反攻時期社會政策。

2. 反攻時期農民運動。

3. 反攻時期青年運動。

4. 反攻時期勞工運動。

5. 反攻時期婦女運動。

6. 光復地區救濟復興方案。

五 關於文教者：

1. 教育政策。

2. 教育制度。

3. 三民主義文化政策及其實施方案。

4. 光復地區初期文教實施計劃。

以下各專題列為參考案：

1. 民族精神教育方案。

2. 生產勞動教育方案。

3. 文武合一教育方案。

4. 電化教育推行計劃。

六 關於軍事者：

1. 反攻軍事戰爭之戰術要領。

2. 軍事動員及其實施辦法。

3. 光復地區治安行政工作實施綱要。

4. 對匪情報戰。

5. 戰地政務組織之研究（與政治組配合討論）。

以下各專題列為報告案：

1. 戰地政工之組織與工作實施辦法。

2. 匪俘處理管訓辦法。

七 關於外交者：

1. 貫徹反共抗俄政策之外交措施。

2. 亞洲集體安全組織問題。

3. 當前華僑問題與外交關係之研究。

4. 如何改善我國與各重要國家間的外交關係。

5. 如何加強國際宣傳問題。

(四) 演習：

黨政軍聯合作戰演習項目另定。

肆 研究進行之程序：

(一) 實務報告：着重黨政軍全盤情況之檢討，黨務報告邀約本黨中央負責同志擔任；政治報告與軍事報告邀約本黨從政同志擔任。各項報告先由負責同志供給書面資料，提出問題，與研究員相互研討。

(二) 專題講述：由本院約請對該項科目有專門研究之人員擔任，講述時提出書面講述大綱，並加解說。

(三) 專題討論：以本院擬訂之討論綱領為基礎，並參考各期結論，按下列程序進行：

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- (四) 建設基本工作：行政三聯制大綱
- (四) 推行地方自治之基本義務
- (四) 現代行政人員須知
- (四) 反攻時期黨政業務的準備事項與新縣制的研究
- (四) 主管機關和推行政令之要領
- (四) 人事制度的重要和考核人才的方法
- (四) 認識時代：何謂科學的羣衆時代

三 經濟組

- (一) 物質建設之要義
- (二) 國民今後努力之方向及建國工作之重點
- (三) 國民經濟建設運動之意義及其實施
- (四) 中國經濟學說
- (四) 土地國有的要義
- (六) 建立國家財政經濟的基礎及推行糧食與土地政策的決心
- (四) 第三屆財政會議之任務與實施土地政策之必要
- (六) 台灣省財政會議訓詞
- (四) 三民主義的社會經濟建設與合作事業
- (四) 今日合作事業推行之方針
- (四) 經濟抗戰之精神與要領
- (四) 最高經濟委員會成立致詞

四 社會組

- (一) 國民今後努力之方向及建國工作之重點
- (二) 社會建設與民生哲學之要義

- (三) 新生活運動綱要
- (四) 認識時代：何謂科學的羣衆時代
- (四) 加緊實行精神總動員
- (六) 民生主義育樂兩篇補述
- (四) 勞動與服務
- (六) 五一勞動節告全國勞工同胞書
- (四) 第十屆青年節告全國青年書
- (四) 組織的重要及組織與情報的關係
- (四) 中華民國四十一年元旦告全國軍民書

五 文教組

- (一) 教育與革命建國的關係
- (二) 整理文化遺產與改進民族習性
- (三) 改造教育與變化氣質
- (四) 救國必須實施文武合一德術兼修的教育
- (四) 雪恥復國的典範和基本教育
- (六) 民生主義育樂兩篇補述
- (四) 時代考驗青年青年創造時代
- (六) 國家需要革命青年青年需要革命教育
- (四) 哲學與教育對青年的關係
- (二) 爲學的目的與教育之要義
- (四) 救國教育
- (四) 革命教育
- (四) 軍事化的教育

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

本院黨政軍幹部聯合作戰研究班第四期研究員研讀 院長訓詞辦法
 根據本期教育實施辦法第五、六兩條有關研讀 院長訓詞及寫作讀訓心得報告之規定，特訂定本辦法。
 本期研究員每週研讀 院長訓詞四至五次，每次以一小時為準。
 訓詞研讀採集體與分組（包括業科編組與混合編組）方式，其內容如左：
 一、集體研讀之 訓詞篇目，應與實務報告、專題講述等科目相互配合。
 二、分組研讀之 訓詞篇目，應與各組專題討論之題目相互配合。
 集體研讀，於規定時間內，在大禮堂實施，研讀時，由研究員一人逐句朗誦，其餘研究員循聲聽點。
 分組研讀，於規定時間內在各組研究室實施，由研究員自行閱讀。
 研究員應於全期中寫作讀訓心得報告二次，寫作題目及時間由教務組臨時公佈之。

CONFIDENTIAL

本院黨政軍幹部聯合作戰研究班第四期研究員研讀 訓詞篇目
 集體研讀 訓詞篇目（第一至第三週）
 一、三民主義之體系及其實行程序
 二、革命教育的基礎
 三、行的道理
 四、革命實踐運動
 五、實踐與組織
 六、黨的組織之建立與運用
 七、重建革命基本組織策進反攻革命運動：本黨的民運方針：
 八、高級幹部同志應有的責任
 九、科學的道理
 十、設計觀念的統一與確立設計工作的基礎與重點

CONFIDENTIAL

十一、對推行反共抗俄總動員運動之提示
 十二、當前國際形勢與中國革命的環境
 分組研讀 訓詞篇目（第四至第六週）
 一、黨務組
 (一) 本黨革命之經過與成敗的因果關係
 (二) 為本黨改造告全黨同志書
 (三) 本黨今後努力方針
 (四) 如何改進我們革命的方法
 (五) 黨的行動指導原則
 (六) 組織的重要與情報的關係
 (七) 黨員守則的意義
 (八) 黨員精神修養與心理改造之重要
 (九) 禮義廉恥的精義
 (十) 革命的心法：誠
 (十一) 神秘性與心理戰對剝匪作戰之重要及其方法
 (十二) 喚醒黨魂發揚黨德鞏固黨基
 (十三) 改造地方黨務須知
 (十四) 海外黨務工作要旨
 二、政治組
 (一) 政治建設之要義
 (二) 建國運動
 (三) 建國的行政
 (四) 推行縣政與政治建設

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

- 十、對推行反共抗俄總動員運動之提示
- 十一、四十二年對國民大會報告詞
- 十二、孫子兵法與古代作戰原則以及今日戰爭藝術化的意義之闡明
- 十三、孫子兵法與古代作戰原則意義之闡明
- 十四、軍人魂
- 十五、當前幾個重要問題的答案
- 十六、國民革命第三任務如何達成
- 十七、科學辦事方法的示範
- 十八、黨政業務基本要項
- 十九、黨政業務演習講評 黨政業務演習之意義與要點
- 二十、反共抗俄戰爭思想之提示

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL

大學之道

六 軍事組

- (一) 軍人應確立革命的人生觀
- (二) 革命軍人的哲學提要
- (三) 國民革命第三任務之說明
- (四) 警察的常識與任務
- (五) 如何改進我們革命的方法
- (六) 今後軍事教育的方針
- (七) 對於幹部教育之回顧及今後剿匪戰術之檢討
- (八) 改進機關部隊的急務和訓練考核的要領
- (九) 說軍紀之要義與功效及戰爭哲學的中心問題
- (十) 革命黨員與革命軍人應有的認識
- (十一) 中庸之要旨與將領之基本學理
- (十二) 軍事機關部隊建立制度改進業務之要點
- (十三) 敵我雙方優劣之檢討
- (十四) 為何漢奸必亡侵略必敗
- (十五) 國家失敗的原因和聳聳復國的急務
- (十六) 軍事改革之基本精神與要點
- (十七) 建國建軍必先建立制度造成風氣
- (十八) 四十二年度軍事會議的指示和講評的補充
- (十九) 反共抗俄的工作要領和努力方向
- (二十) 研究美國建軍的精神指明中國革命軍人必要的信念：主義、領袖、國家、責任、榮譽
- (二十一) 剿匪戰術之研究與高級將領應有的認識

CONFIDENTIAL

(二十二) 神秘性與心理戰對剿匪作戰之重要及其方法

七 外交組

- (一) 最近國際局勢之演變與我們反共抗俄之前途
- (二) 第一回合的勝利
- (三) 聯合國五週年紀念文告
- (四) 敵乎友乎
- (五) 第一屆華僑節告海外僑胞書
- (六) 抵禦外侮與復興民族
- (七) 外交人員的修養
- (八) 實施憲政應有之確切認識
- (九) 如何爭取自由
- (十) 為何漢奸必亡侵略必敗
- (十一) 大學之道

參 混合編組研讀 訓詞篇目 (第七至十二週)

- 一 組織的原理與功效
- 二 反共抗俄基本論
- 三 重建本黨的根本問題
- 四 心理建設之要義
- 五 政治的道理
- 六 政治建設之要義
- 七 中國經濟學說
- 八 物質建設之要義
- 九 民生主義有樂兩篇補述

CONFIDENTIAL

CONFIDENTIAL